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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS
DALLAS DIVISION

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION,

Plaintiff, Case No. 3:11-CV-2059

V.

DEBT RELIEF USA, INC.,
a corporation,

KELLY REILLY, Individually and as an
officer of the corporation,

ALVIN BELL, Individually and as an
officer of the corporation,

JAMES WOJCIK, Individually and as an
officer of the corporation, and

VALERIE LEATH, Individually and as a
manager of the corporation,

Defendants.

N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N

COMPLAINT FOR PERMANENT INJUNCTION AND OTHER EQUITABLE RELIEF

Plaintiff, the Federal Trade Commission (“FTC”), for its Complaint alleges:

1. The FTC brings this action under Section 13(b) of the Federal Trade Commission Act
(“FTC Act”), 15 U.S.C. § 53(b), to obtain preliminary and permanent injunctive relief, rescission or
reformation of contracts, restitution, the refund of monies paid, disgorgement of ill-gotten monies,
and other equitable relief for Defendants’ acts or practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC

Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a).
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction purgua 28 U.S.C88 1331, 1337(a)
and 1345, and 15.8.C. 88 45(a) and 33

3. Venueis proper in this district under 28 U.S.C. 8 1391l é&c)and 15 U.S.C.
8 53(b).

PLAINTIFF

4, The HC is an independ agencyof the United States Gowenent ceatel by
statute. 15 U.S.C. 88§ 41-58. ThEG-enfor@s Section 5{eof the H'C Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a),
which prohibits unfair odecetive acts or factices in or afectingcommere.

5. The HC is authorized to itiate federd district court procedings, byits own
attorne, to enjoin violations of the FTC Achd to secursuch equitableelief as maybe
approprate in eah cae, includingeséssion or refomation of contrats, restitution, the rahd of
monies paid, and the disgement of ill-gotten monies. 15 U.S.C. 88 53(b) and H@%A).

DEFENDANTS

6. Defendart Debt Relief USA, Inc. (“DRUSA”) is a Forida for-profit corpordion that
had its principal plae of businesstad 6200 Addison Road, Sei& 100 and 105, ddison, Texas
75001. DRUSA transéed business in this digct and througout the United States. At all times
materid to this Complaint, actinglane or in conert with others, RUSA advertised, niketed,
distributed, or sold debt reliskrvice to consumers throbgut the United States. On June 18,
2009, DRUSA filed a voluntgrpetition under the mrganization provisions of Chapter 11 of the
BankruptcyCode, 11 U.S.C. § 10t seq,.in the United States B&ruptcyCourt for the Nathern

District of Texas, Case No. @8836-SG.J On dine 25, 2009, thedhkrupty Court conveted the



caseto Chapter 7, andppointed a Chaptef Trustee The instant dmon aginst DRUSA is not

staye
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10. Defendant Valerie Leath was the rector of Maiketingand Diretor of information
Technology a DRUSA and athree percent shareholder of thecompany. At times mderial to this
Conplaint, acting done or in concert with athe's, sheformulated, directed, controlled, had authority
to control, or pdicipated in the d@s and pratices of DRUSA, includinghe ats and pratices set
forth in this Compdint. Deendant Véerie Leath, in conngtion with the matters allegl, transacte
business in this dtrict and throulgout the United States.

COMMERCE

11. Atall times material to this Comgiht, DeEndants maintaimkea substantial cose of
tradein or aflectingcommere, as tommere” is ddined in Section 4 of theTC Act, 15 U.S.C.
§ 44.

DEFENDANTS’ BUSINESS ACTIVITI ES

12.  Since a least 2005, and continuing urtil approximately June2009, Defendants
DRUSA, Kelly Relly, Alvin Bell, Jame Wogik, and Valerie Leath doffered adebt relief service to
consume's having diffi culty with ther personal finances. Defendantstargeted consumers with
substantial amounts of unseedrdebt, den claimingthat participion in their debt relieservice
would result in the elimination of 40 to 60 pent of ®nsumers’ diets and that participiag
consumers would be debt free in 24 to48 morths

Defendants’ Meketingand Advetising

13. Defendants m&eted theirdebt réief sewice on the wbsites
www.4debtreliefusacom, www.dusainfo.com, ad www.détreliefusaus and throug national

television and ridio advetisements.



14.  Throug their wédsites, Defadants remsentd that, for onsumers to beene debt
free, “It typically takes éout 24-36 morths after we'v e negotiated the total amouwnt of debt down to
40-60%. This includedldees”, and stated,Becausewne ngotiate the debt down tofeaction of
what you owe, pur saving arefar greder than ay interest or lge fees that couldame.”
Defendants’ vebsites ermuraged consumes to call a toll-fee numbeto lean more &out
Defendants’ dit relief sevice.

15. Intheir national teldsion and radio advésements, Defndants madelaims such as
“you can sttle your credit cad debt for panies on the dollar without filinépr bankruptcy and
“you typically save hout half of whayou owe ad can tuly be debtrfeein less than 36 months.”
Defendants’ adio and teleision advertisements wed intersted consumerto call a toll-fre

number fola e
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staed thet, based on Defendants special relationships with creditors, Defendants could negotiate
significant discounts foransumers.

Client Sttlement Ageement

18,  Comsumeaswho agreed toenroll in Defendants debt relief service were required to
authorize a @k acount debit over the kephone ér the initial monthlypayment prior to reeiving
enrollment docun@s. Among thenrollment docuntgs werea Client Settlement Agenent
(“Agreement”), forms authorizing recurring morthly withdrawals from consume's’ bank accounts,
and aform used to identify theamounts owed to various aeditors.

19. The Ageanent was dive or six pag@ sinde-spaed documet. The Ageanent
contained povisions that often wenaot previouslydisclosed or we @ntraryto the repesentéions
on Dekndants’ vebsites or in Diendants’ sales dés. For example, the Agement stated “in no
manner has DRUSA represented that Client 2op making paymentsto ther Creditors” This
contralicted the instruction in the saleall that consumsmust agee to stop pagg ther creditors
for Defendants debt relief service to work. The Agreement dso indicated that creditors ma/ choose
not to participate in Cfendants’ service

Defendants’ Ees

20. Defendants charged consumer's fees, including administrative fees, morthly
maintenane fees, and ngotiation fees. Diendants took these fagfrom the monthlyeairring
withdrawds consumers authiaed. Pursuant to the Aggmaet, administrative feewere
non-refundale unless consumers cancdled errolimert in Defendarts delx relief serviceduring a

sevendayperiod followingenrollment.
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21 Defendants charged consumers an upfront administrative fee tha was clculated as 8
to 10 perent of the enount of debt that consunseowed their unseired cralitors at the time of
enrollment.

22. Defendants lso chargd a monthlynaintenane fee of $29.95 0639.95 for ach
month consumers we enrolled in Deéndants’ dbt relief sevice.

23. Defendants lso chargd a ngotiation fee 6r eah acount settled. The getiation
feewas alculatel as 13 to 15 peent of the pyvorted saving the compangbtained in the
settlement. Mangonsumers neer pad a ne@tiation fee beauseDefendants did not settle aoy
ther debts

Defendants’ RierenceBookla

24.  After consumersraolled in Deéndants’ dbt relief sevice, theyreeived areference
booklet from Déendants. The booklet providediditional information about Defidants’ dbt
relief service

25.  Thebooklet stated it could take upto sx monthsfor DRUSA to achieve thefirst
settlement. Additionallyconsumers @reinstructed not to tell ccbtors to call DRUSA, and that
DRUSA would inform crditors of consumet involvement in its service onlyhen onsumers
were financially realy to settle one or mor@counts. h numerous instanseDefadants did not
disclose this infformation to consumers prior to thar enrollment.

Failure to Deliver Promised Resuts

26. In numerous instansgDefendants did not contact oommence sdement
negotiationswith consumes’ creditors immediately upon consume's enrollment in Defendants

debt rdief sewvice. Typically, Defendants did not conthor initiate negtiations with anycreditor



until after @) mnsumers had phthe administrative &in full and (b)}consumers lthacaumulated
enoudp funds in a “seaside” &count to settle the Bewith that creditor. Qén, the first time
Defendants mentioned thisctawas in the Refrence Booklet, which consums received after
enrollment.

27. For numerous consumes, it took over Sx months after enrollment to pay Defend



and reeived the promised mailts. h numerous instansgeconsumersancdied or droppd out of

Defendants’ dbt relief sevice before anydebt was ngotiated beause thg could not afbrd to pay
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all fees paid to Defedants.

refund from the Defendants Defendants routindy denied consumers’ refund requests
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relied on alculations of pst consumers’asults that: (a) includieonly consumerstebts that
Defendants etually settled, omiting those debts that Dexidants wee undole to or did not settle; (b)

were basd on the amounts consummeaeywed &athe ti

10






Award Plaintiff the costs of bringg this ation, as well as such othand aditional

relief as the Sourt magietemine to be just and proper

Dated: Augist 17,2011

Respectilly submited,

WILLARD K. TOM
Geneal Counsel

DEANYA T. KUECKELHAN
Regonal Diredor
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